
Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 

Dydd Mawrth, 24 Mawrth 2015  

 

Amser: 

08.30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Michael Kay 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565 

SeneddArchwilio@Cynulliad.Cymru  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon (08:30)  

2 Papurau i’w nodi (08:30-08:35) (Tudalennau 1 - 3) 

3 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a 

Chefnffyrdd: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 4 (08:35-09:30) (Tudalennau 4 - 51)  

Richard Jones, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth, Asiant Cefnffyrdd De Cymru  

Dave Cooil, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth, Asiant Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru 

Ian Hughes, Rheolwr Busnes a Gweithrediaeth Statudol, Asiant Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a 

Chanolbarth Cymru 

4 Trefniadau llywodraethu Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr: 

Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1 (09:30-10:45) (Tudalennau 52 - 64)  

Yr Athro Trevor Purt, Prif Weithredwr, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 

Dr Peter Higson OBE, Cadeirydd, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 

Geoff Lang, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Strategaeth, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi 

Cadwaladr 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd 

o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol: (10:45)   

Eitem 6 

6 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a 

Chefnffyrdd: Trafod y dystiolaeth (10:45-11:00)  



 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 

 

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - y Senedd 
 

 

  
Dyddiad:  Dydd Mawrth, 17 Mawrth 2015 

 

  
Amser:  08.30 - 10.56 

 

  

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn: 
http://senedd.tv/cy/2609 

 

 

Cofnodion Cryno: 

 

   
Aelodau’r Cynulliad:  Darren Millar AC (Cadeirydd) 

Jocelyn Davies AC 

Byron Davies AC (yn lle William Graham AC) 

Mike Hedges AC 

Sandy Mewies AC 

Julie Morgan AC 

Jenny Rathbone AC 

Aled Roberts AC 

 

  

   
Tystion:  Russell Bennett, Sefydliad Siartredig Priffyrdd a Chludiant 

(Cangen De Cymru) 

Rhodri-Gwynn Jones, Cymdeithas Contractwyr Peirianneg 

Sifil Cymru 

David Meller, Sefydliad Siartredig Priffyrdd a Chludiant 

(Cangen Gogledd Cymru) 

Bob Lark, Prifysgol Caerdydd 

Kris Moodley, Prifysgol Leeds 

Nigel Smith, Prifysgol Leeds 

 

  

   
Staff y Pwyllgor:  Michael Kay (Clerc) 

Leanne Hatcher (Ail Clerc) 

Tanwen Summers (Dirprwy Glerc)   

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



Andrew Minnis (Ymchwilydd) 

Joanest Varney-Jackson (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol) 

 

 

1 Rheoli Ymadawiadau Cynnar  

1.1  Trafododd y Pwyllgor ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad Archwilydd 

Cyffredinol Cymru ar Reoli Ymadawiadau Cynnar a llythyr gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol 

Cymru yn rhoi’r wybodaeth bellach y gofynnodd y Pwyllgor amdani. 

 

2 Blaenraglen waith  

2.1  Cytunodd yr Aelodau ar y rhaglen waith ar gyfer tymor yr haf. 

 

2.2  Absenolodd Jocelyn Davies ei hun o'r cyfarfod yn ystod y drafodaeth ar fater yn 

ymwneud â chyfrifoldeb blaenorol a oedd ganddi fel Gweinidog. 

 

3 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon  
3.1  Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i'r cyfarfod. 

 

3.2  Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau gan William Graham. 

 

3.2  Croesawodd y Cadeirydd Byron Davies a oedd yn dirprwyo ar ran William 

Graham. 

 

4 Papurau i’w nodi  
4.1  Nodwyd y papurau, gydag un newid bach.  

 

4.2  Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i ysgrifennu at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid gan roi cyfle i’r 

Pwyllgor wneud gwaith craffu pellach ar y gronfa Buddsoddi i Arbed.  

 

5 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd: 

Sesiwn dystiolaeth 2  

5.1  Cymerodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan academyddion o Brifysgol Leeds a 

Phrifysgol Caerdydd yn ei ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a 

Chefnffyrdd. 

 

6 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd: 

Sesiwn dystiolaeth 3  

6.1  Cymerodd y Pwyllgor dystiolaeth gan Gymdeithas Contractwyr Peirianneg Sifil 

Cymru a Changhennau Gogledd a De Cymru Sefydliad Siartredig Priffyrdd a Chludiant 

yn ei ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



6.2  Cytunodd Russell Bennett o Sefydliad Siartredig Priffyrdd a Chludiant, Cangen De 

Cymru i ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth am fuddsoddi preifat. 

 

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o’r 

cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol:  

7.1  Derbyniwyd y cynnig. 

 

8 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd: 

Trafod y dystiolaeth:  

8.1  Trafododd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



1. 

 

National Assembly for Wales Public Account 

Committee Inquiry into Value for Money of 

Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

 

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response  

19
th

 February 2015 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 4

Eitem 3



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

2 
 

1. Introduction  

 

1.1 Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council are appointed as Agents to the 

Welsh Government (WG) to act on their behalf in managing, improving and 

maintaining the strategic road network in South Wales on a day to day basis.    

  

1.2 Neath Port Talbot operate under delegated authority from WG under the 

Highways Act 1980 and the required scope and service levels are as defined 

in the Welsh Government Management Agent Agreement (WGMA). 

   

1.3 The role of Agent includes the following:-  

 Provision of technical advice   

 Operational management of the network including incident 

 management and adverse weather planning 

 Inspection of all highway assets to determine asset condition  and the 

 identification of defects 

 Delivery of routine, cyclical and reactive maintenance 

 Design and deliver planned major maintenance renewal, upgrade 

 and improvement works 

 

2. Background 

 

2.1 As a result of a review by WG in 2003, the decision was taken to rationalise 

 the number of public sector Trunk Road Agents from 8 to 3 creating new 

Agents in North, Mid and South Wales. WG, through these new 

arrangements, placed greater emphasis on continuous service 

improvement, improved business management focus, increased competition 

and transparency in terms of service delivery whilst ensuring business 

continuity.  

 

2.2 In 2010 a further external review of the service was undertaken; this 

included a benchmarking exercise to compare the total service costs across 

Wales with that of the private sector model in Scotland. The review findings 

confirmed that the public sector model operating in Wales were providing 

Value for Money in the context of the Welsh Economy, leading to the 

renewal of the Welsh Model. The decision was taken at that time to further 

rationalise the number of Trunk Road Agents across Wales from 3 to 2.  

 

2.3 An extract from the renewal letter is as follows:-  

“This is a very positive result for the unique public sector model that we 

have in Wales, which will now continue after its cost effectiveness was 

established in comparison with alternative private models as part of the 

review”. 

 

  

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 5



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

3 
 

3. The extent to which the current approach to routine maintenance of the 

network via Trunk Road Agents provides value for money.  

 

3.1 The South Wales Trunk Road Agent operating model agreed with WG in 

2005 has been of an enabling organisation but with all delegated function 

delivered directly by the management unit in order to deliver improved 

control and consistency. 

 

3.2  At the start of the Agreement with WG in 2006, SWTRA was tasked with 

 ensuring surety of service to the Welsh Government for a two year period.  

At the end of this period, SWTRA was empowered to make changes to its 

procurement of works and supply chain in an effort to improve consistency 

and compliance across the South Wales region. Thereafter, with the 

Agreement of the WG, a period of driven improvement has been in place 

through which SWTRA has strived to provide continuous improvement and 

value for money to the WG. 

 

3.3 Examples of this continuous improvement and value for money process 

include:- 

 

3.4 Implementation of a robust and transparent Management Unit Structure for 

SWTRA. The cost of this Unit is recharged to the Welsh Government on a 

Direct Cost basis, with no surplus or profit generated.  Annual returns to 

the WG give full details of the staff structure including salaries.  New 

appointments to the structure can only take place with Welsh Government 

approval.  Full details are provided in terms of Premises cost along with 

Operational Vehicle costs and Supplies and Services.  

  

3.5   The nature of the agreement between the WG and the Agent is one that 

provides flexibility and agility and is such that the Welsh Government 

cannot be subjected to compensation events as a result of changes to the 

services or budgets that it requests of or provides to SWTRA.  Due to the 

Agreement being with a Local Authority all charges to Welsh Government 

are net of VAT, which gives a 20% benefit on all works carried out.    

 

3.6  The agile nature of SWTRA’ procurement/delivery strategy means that its 

supply chain provides both resilience and flexibility which has enabled it to 

scale up and scale down, sometimes several times in the course of a 

financial year, in order to assist the Welsh Government with budget 

pressures or additional funding. 

 

3.7 This flexibility and agility has enabled the Agent to balance the cost of 

individual schemes across budget programmes, thus ensuring that the 

Agent provides a service that is within the approved Budget Expenditure 

Lines provided by WG. 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 6



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

4 
 

3.8  SWTRA has met the requirements of the WG in engendering the Wales PLC 

agenda with a supply chain that consists of a Public Sector and Private 

Sector split, utilising for the optimum solution, the specialist skills and 

resources that both sectors provide.    

 

3.9 Routine and Cyclical Maintenance is undertaken by the Public Sector 

providing the Welsh Government with the benefits of a shared basic 

infrastructure including Depots and Plant.  This is especially of benefit in 

rural areas and allows for a timely response to emergencies on the Network 

and Winter Maintenance activities. 

 

3.10 SWTRA has continued to drive continuous improvement through its Public 

Sector Supply Chain.  In 2009 rationalisation was achieved by encouraging 

the Local Authorities to form three Regional Maintenance Partnerships, with 

the benefits of cross border working, improved consistency and a lower 

level of administration yielding both improved compliance and efficiency 

savings.  In 2012 further efficiencies were achieved by another phase of 

rationalisation with the Partnership Agreements.   

 

3.11 Capital Maintenance and Improvement Programmes are delivered via 

competitively procured Framework Construction contracts and Consultancy 

contracts with the Private Sector.  Rationalisation of these contracts in 2010 

led to a reduction in procurement costs and efficiencies of scale by merging 

the Structure and Highway contracts into one. 

 

3.12 SWTRA has repeatedly proven its ability to be highly adaptive and respond 

to emerging WG initiatives throughout its Agreement period and has 

successfully delivered the following additional services to its portfolio of 

services:- 

 

 Statutory Tunnel Manager Role 2006 

 New Roads and Streetworks Policy Advisor 2010 

 Traffic Officer Service 2010 

 South Wales Traffic Management Control Centre 2010 

 SWTRA area expansion  to incorporate whole of Carmarthenshire 

 CC and Pembrokeshire CC 2012 

 IRIS Implementation Project Management Support 2013  

 

3.13 The implementation of the new Welsh Government Traffic Officer Service in 

2010 involved the delivery of a new service including the recruitment and 

training of staff, the procurement of vehicles and equipment and the 

operational implementation of complex guidelines.  SWTRA achieved this 

within agreed timescales and provides a service that is recharged at cost to 

the WG and that has been praised by a number of Stakeholders. 

 

 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 7



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

5 
 

3.14 A further example of delivering Value for Money was the transfer of the 

operation of the South Wales Traffic Management Control Room to the 

Agent. This provided SWTRA the opportunity on behalf of WG to integrate 

two operational services and to harmonise staffing, management systems 

and procedures. These changes enabled the improved service delivery of 

the emergency response and traffic management function and also yielded 

significant efficiency savings to the WG. 

 

3.15 The drive for continuous improvement and value for money for the Welsh 

Government has led to several reorganisations of the Agent structure and 

the delivery of services to the Welsh Government throughout the Agreement 

period. 

 

3.16 A number of service areas, including the Highway Inspection Service and 

Streetworks Management functions, were removed from the supply chain in 

order to be delivered in house by the Agent.  This has led to a greater level 

of compliance and consistency as well as yielding efficiency savings in the 

cost of the service. 

 

3.17 Throughout the Agreement period the Agent has been subject to scrutiny by 

external audit.  This has included annual audits of its Financial claims to 

Welsh Government by the Wales Audit Office as well as compliance and 

performance audits by Welsh Government procured auditors, these being; 

Halcrow 2007, E C Harris 2008, Performance Audit Group 2011 and EC 

Harris 2013.  In addition the Agent is subject to external audit of its 

Integrated Quality, Health & Safety and Environmental Management 

Systems.  Throughout this process no financial qualifications or major non 

conformities have been raised by the audit teams. 

 

3.18 The 2013 Audit raised some recommendations and these are currently 

being addressed in conjunction with the development of proposals for the 

on-going Ministerial Review. 

  

4 How can the maintenance and improvement Functions delivered by the 

trunk road agent be improved, in the context of the on-going Welsh 

Government review of these Agents. 

 

4.1 On the 11
th

 November 2014 the Minister for Economy, Science and 

Transport announced a review into the management of Trunk Road 

maintenance in Wales.  The Trunk Road Agents are currently in the process 

of preparing a submission to Welsh Government to indicate proposals for 

achieving the following ministerial objectives:-  

 Drive and Capture Efficiency to deliver substantial savings 

 Agility – ability to scale up and down  

 Harmonisation in approach across Wales  

 Primacy for decision and expenditure with WG 

 Improvements in service delivery and value for money  

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 8



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

6 
 

 

4.2 Neath Port Talbot CBC, as SWTRA, has and continues to be committed to the 

identification and delivery of service improvement proposals and are 

currently working in conjunction with its supply chain and WG to evaluate 

and submit proposals which can address the above stated objectives.   

 

4.3 Examples currently under consideration and review include; 

 

4.4 A full review of the Management Unit and the wider supply chain to identify 

potential efficiencies from delivering further functions in-house.  Areas 

under consideration include the delivery of Inspections in relation to the WG 

assets of Structures, Lighting and Soft Estate.   

 

4.5  Working with the Public Sector supply chain to identify improved methods 

of working in order to deliver efficiency savings in the areas of routine and 

cyclical maintenance. 

 

4.6 Enhanced transparency is a key objective of the Ministerial Review and work 

is underway to provide a greater level of transparency in relation to Routine 

Maintenance costs.  This work includes elements of bench marking costs 

both within our Public Sector supply chain and against available cross 

border data. 

 

4.7  Proposals have been identified to pilot service level changes to the current 

WG maintenance standard in order to reduce costs whilst minimising risk to 

the Welsh Ministers.  These pilots will be proposed in order to enable 

intelligence to be developed that will allow the WG to make a considered 

decision on its future maintenance standard with a full risk and reward 

analysis available. 

 

4.8  In order to better harmonise the approach to Trunk Road maintenance 

across Wales, consideration is being given to develop All Wales contracts for 

service delivery.  This approach could reduce procurement costs, improve 

benchmarking opportunities and identify national best practice for All Wales 

adoption. 

 

5. Constraints/Opportunities 

 

5.1  SWTRA prides itself on its ability to scale up if and when additional funds 

become available towards the latter part of the financial year within WG.  

The model has enabled significant investment to be made in the Trunk Road 

network during the latter part of recent financial years. Whilst SWTRA 

welcomes the opportunities to undertake additional works as finance 

becomes available other benefits could be achieved by supplementing this 

with early notification of an initial budget each year.  The ability to progress 

works during the early part of the year and then to supplement with 

additional budget would assist with programming of works. This would 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 9



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent Written Response 19th February 2015 
 

7 
 

smooth out the delivery profile and impact positively on congestion 

management and road space interventions. 

 

5.2  WG is currently in the process of upgrading its Highway IT management 

systems.  The Agent welcomes the opportunity that it has had to assist the 

WG with the development of these systems, and looks forward to the 

continuing process of implementation.   

 

5.3  During the past six years, the level of Capital investment in Major 

Maintenance of the Trunk Road Asset has fallen.  This is manifest in the 

increased level of Network requiring intervention (up from 8% to 13%).  The 

impact of this is an increase in the number of unplanned repairs which can 

lead to inefficient use of resources, increase costs and the number of 

network interventions.  Increased capital investment would allow for major 

planned maintenance to take place to arrest the decline in the overall asset 

condition enabling a more cost effective approach to maintenance. 

Consideration could also be given to utilising more durable materials in 

certain locations to increase the lifespan of the carriageway.  

 

6 Conclusion 

 

6.1 SWTRA believe that the current trunk road Agent model has proven through 

rigorous and robust audits that it is providing a good level of service 

delivery through its public and private supply chains.  

 

6.2 Whilst acknowledging there is a need to continue to review the service 

provision, especially in times of challenging financial climate, SWTRA is 

committed to working closely with its supply chain and in the delivery of its 

own services, to strive to provide continuous improvement.    

 

6.3 SWTRA would like to thank the Committee for the opportunity to provide 

this statement and welcomes any questions that the Committee may have in 

relation to it. 

 

 

 

 

Richard Jones, Head of Service – South Wales Trunk Road Agent, Unit 12 

Llandarcy House, The Courtyard, Llandarcy, Neath SA10 6EJ 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 10



1. 

 

National Assembly for Wales Public Account 

Committee Inquiry into Value for Money of 

Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

 

South Wales Trunk Road Agent  

Supplementary Questions - Written Response  

18
th

 March 2015 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 2

Tudalen y pecyn 11



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

2 
 

1. Introduction  

 

1.1 Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council are appointed as 

Agents to the Welsh Government (WG) to act on their behalf in 

managing, improving and maintaining the strategic road network 

in South Wales on a day to day basis.    

  

1.2 Neath Port Talbot operate under delegated authority from WG 

under the Highways Act 1980 and the required scope and service 

levels are as defined in the Welsh Government Management 

Agent Agreement (WGMA). 

   

1.3 The role of Agent includes the following:-  

 

 Provision of technical advice   

 Operational management of the network including incident 

management and adverse weather planning 

 Inspection of all highway assets to determine asset condition 

and the identification of defects 

 Delivery of routine, cyclical and reactive maintenance 

 Design and deliver planned major maintenance renewal, 

upgrade and improvement works 

 

 

2. The staffing levels at the South Wales Trunk Road Agent including 

local authority staff involved in delivery and any local authority 

staff seconded for the years 2011 – 2015.  

 

2.1 The SWTRA staff structure currently stands at 124 to manage the 

day to day operations of 178kms of Motorway and 436kms of 

Trunk Road and its associated budget of approximately 

£50million to deliver a programme of maintenance and 

improvements.   

 

2.2 The South Wales Trunk Road Agent operating model agreed with 

WG in 2005 has been of an enabling organisation but with all 

delegated function delivered directly by the management unit in 

order to deliver improved control and consistency. In terms of 

the Technical Administration function, it is only specialist asset 

inspections including drainage and structures, which are brought 

in from the supply chain and are not delivered directly by the 

Agent. 

 

2.3 SWTRA as an organisation is managed in four divisions; Network 

Management, Delivery, Asset Management and Business 

Management. The Staff Structure numbers by division for 

2010/11 to 2014/15 are presented in table 1:     

Tudalen y pecyn 12



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

3 
 

Table 1: SWTRA Staff Structure Numbers 
 

Year 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Network 

Management  

29 

 

51 49 50 50 

Delivery 

 

30 30 31 29 29 

Asset 

Management 

26 26 27 27 27 

Business 

Management 

18 17 16 18 18 

Total Post Post 

Numbers 

103 124 123 124 124 

 

 

2.4 The most significant change in the number of staff posts within 

the Agency structure relates to the transfer of the control room 

operations function from the Traffic Wales Contract in 2012 to 

enable the implementation and development of an integrated 

Incident response service incorporating the traffic officer service, 

traffic management, adverse weather and incident response 

service.   

  

2.5 The primary roles and responsibility of the four SWTRA divisions 

are contained below: 

   

2.6 Asset Management. This division is responsible for inspecting, 

assessing and providing recommendations for maintaining the 

condition of Welsh Government’ Motorway and trunk road assets. 

These assets include the highway, bridges and structures 

(including tunnels), street lighting, traffic signals and the soft 

estate.    

 

2.7 Delivery. The Delivery division is responsible for the development 

and implementation of programmes of both maintenance and 

asset improvement schemes. The maintenance schemes can 

range from the delivery of routine and cyclical maintenance to 

larger asset renewal and improvement schemes. The delivery of 

projects requires the procurement, commissioning and 

management of services through the supply chain of public and 

private sector partners.       

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

4 
 

2.8  Business Management. This division undertakes and delivers the 

business functions which are key in maintaining operations and 

supports all aspects of service delivery. The business 

management is responsible for the business related functions of: 

Financial Management, Business Planning, Performance 

Management, 3
rd

 Party Claims administration, Health and Safety, 

Customer Services, ICT Management and Quality Management. 

  

2.9 Network Management. The Network Management division is 

responsible for the operational management and resilience of the 

network. The division is based at the South Wales Traffic 

Management Centre, Cardiff and is responsible for the functions 

of: Network Contingency Planning, Incident Response, Adverse 

Weather Service, Road space and Traffic Management, Abnormal 

Load Routing, Tunnel Management, Major Event Planning and the 

Traffic Officer Service.    

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 14



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

5 
 

3. Provide information on traffic management arrangements 

 

3.1 In the operation and maintenance of highway networks, it is 

necessary from time to time to put in place temporary traffic 

management measures to facilitate safe road works, temporary 

or incident management whilst keeping the traffic flowing as 

freely as possible. With high traffic flows and speeds on many 

roads, it is particularly important to plan all works activities and 

temporary road closures to optimise safety, road space and work 

efficiently, whilst minimising road user congestion, delay and 

inconvenience. All reasonable steps should be taken to ensure 

that the effects of the works are reduced to a minimum whilst 

ensuring the safety of both the travelling public and the 

workforce (extract from Chapter 8 of the Traffic Signs Manual).    

 

3.2 In order to minimise congestion without compromising safety the 

Trunk Road Agents in conjunction with Welsh Government have 

developed a guidance document for planning and coordination 

purposes outlining restrictions in relation to times that traffic 

management can be installed on the motorway and trunk road 

network. The restrictions are based on hourly traffic flows and 

refer to closures on the main carriageway. In South Wales 

especially on the M4 corridor between Newport and Cardiff 

(average traffic flows of 80,000 vehicles per day of which 

approximately 10,000 are HGVs), traffic flows dictate that a 

significant volume of work is undertaken at night where flows are 

lower. In areas where daytime working is permissible work is 

generally undertaken during off peak with the extent of traffic 

management and peak time working minimised as far as 

practicable.    

 

3.3 Additional care in the approval of road works is taken during 

periods of increased flows such as school holiday periods 

especially on holiday routes and total road works embargoes are 

applied on public holiday weekends  

 

3.4 Applications to undertake road works on the network are closely 

monitored on a weekly basis by the Agents Route Stewards with 

each application assessed, with durations and works content 

agreed in advance. Details of the planned works are then 

coordinated and communicated to all stakeholders on a Friday to 

advise of the week ahead (Sunday to Sunday). Details of major or 

high impact road works are also publicised on the Traffic Wales 

Website. Work is currently on-going in the development of the 

Traffic Wales website in order to improve the display of advance 

works planning information, road closures and events on the 

motorway and trunk road network.     

Tudalen y pecyn 15



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

6 
 

    

3.5 In terms of longer term planning and coordination of works with 

local authorities, the trunk road agents on behalf of Welsh 

Government have a statutory duty to attend quarterly 

coordination meetings with all local authorities and utility 

companies to plan and coordinate work in order that network 

conflicts do not occur in relation to the use of diversion routes 

etc. As part of the coordination and consultation process, 

stakeholders are advised of these proposals and their feedback 

welcomed. Occasionally, emergencies do arise and works have to 

be undertaken to ensure public safety but in these circumstances 

everything possible is undertaken to mitigate any adverse 

effects.  

 

 

4. Provide details of how accidents and major incidents on the trunk 

road and motorway network are managed. 

 

4.1 The Network Management Team at the Traffic Management 

Centre has been implemented to ensure that processes and 

systems are in place to deliver a prompt and effective response 

to incidents so that the effect can be minimised and any 

congestion resulting from the event impacting on the travelling 

public reduced. 

 

4.2    The incidents which the team are required to be capable of 

responding to are detailed in Welsh Government’ Trunk Road 

Maintenance Manual (TRMM) and include adverse weather events, 

road traffic collisions, obstructions, damage or sudden 

deterioration of the highway assets (which are classified as 

Category 1 defects and represent an immediate or imminent 

hazard to the road user). 

 

4.3  The incident response times vary across the network from a 1 - 

1.5 hour response during the day to a 2 hour during the night. 

The resources levels established ensure that the current the 

Performance indicator for Incident response in accordance with 

the stipulated target for the route is at 99%. The main emergency 

response resources available for use by SWTRA are: 

 

 South Wales Control Room Operators. (24hr shift basis /365 

days a year) 

 Wales Traffic Officer Service- daytime hours only, M4 junction 

22-35, A48M, A4232 (Culverhouse Cross to Jct 33) and A470 

(Jct 32 to Abercynon) 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

7 
 

 Emergency response teams (24hrs a day) provided by the 

Regional Maintenance Partnerships. These teams undertake 

the initial response to remove debris and make the site safe.   

 Dedicated Route Steward to coordinate response and facilitate 

repair where required.  

 

4.4 South Wales Traffic Management Centre. The role of the control 

room is to monitor network activity via CCTV cameras in order to 

ensure that free flow of the network is maintained and provides a 

single point of contact for Police in the management of incidents 

on the network.  

 

4.5 The South Wales Traffic Management Centre deal with excess of 

24,000 calls each year in relation to incidents on the network 

ranging from vehicle breakdowns to road traffic collisions  In the 

event of an incident the operators set appropriate signs to advise 

the road user of the risk and to set advisory speed limits or 

implement diversion routes. The operators also dispatch the 

traffic officers (where operational) to incidents as well as the 

Emergency response teams to clear up and repair damage, 

monitoring their response and maintaining detailed incident logs 

for record purposes.  

 

4.6    The Traffic Officer Service was introduced in South Wales in 

February 2010 originally patrolling the M4 and A470. The service 

was officially extended in September 2013 to include the A4232 

and the A48M. The Traffic Officer Service in South Wales consists 

of 24 on road Traffic Officers and 3 Incident Managers. The 

Purpose of the Traffic Officer Service is to undertake general and 

road traffic management task thus enabling the Police to focus 

on tackling crime. The role of the traffic officer is to deal with 

routine incidents including non-injury road traffic collisions and 

to assist the emergency services through implementing 

emergency traffic management at more serious incidents.  

 

4.7  The introduction of such a service assists to minimise disruption 

to road user by providing a safe and timely response to incidents 

in order to manage traffic, assess on site requirements in terms 

of debris clearance and infrastructure damage/repairs, liaise with 

emergency services where necessary and relieve congestion as 

soon as possible. In 2013/14 Traffic Officers attended a total of 

8773 incidents and the below table provides an illustration of the 

incident types and activities undertaken by the service.  

 

 

     

 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

8 
 

 

 

 

4.8 Network Resilience and Contingency Planning  

 

4.8.1 The resilience of a road network is based on a number of factors 

including the capacity of the route, the availability of a suitable 

alternative routes and clear lines of communication across 

incident responders to ensure that there is a coordinated 

approach which minimises the time taken to restore the network 

to its normal operating state. 

 

4.8.2 SWTRA have developed a Network Contingency Plan which 

documents the structured approach that major and critical 

incidents are to be managed on the network. It provides a clear 

escalation and management strategy to an incident in the style of 

that of a Category 2 Responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 

2004 detailing the roles and responsibilities at Operational 

(Bronze) to Tactical (Silver) and Strategic (Gold) levels. This 

document is a key reference point for the provision of a SWTRA 

24hr response to incidents through daytime tactical managers 

based at the South Wales Traffic Management Centre and on call 

Duty Managers out of hours.  

 

4.8.3 SWTRA liaise closely with Welsh Government, Emergency 

Services, Local Authorities, Supply chain partners and other key 

stakeholders in the development of these plans which are also 

50

5400

588
14

2

2

1467

437

63
607

50
26 67

Total Incidents - 8,773

Animals

Breakdown

Collision

Congestion

Fault Responder

IT Asset Outage Unplanned

Obstruction

Rolling Road Block / TM

Police Instruction

Safety Patrol

TRA

Vehicle Fire

Weather

Tudalen y pecyn 18



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

9 
 

used to reference agreed strategic and  tactical and diversion 

routes with supporting signs to divert traffic in the event of a 

closure on the Motorway. SWTRA are currently in the process of 

developing and agreeing appropriate diversion routes for the 

trunk road network.  

 

4.8.4 The multi-agency response is recognised through SWTRA’ 

engagement with three Local Resilience Forums in the South 

Wales Area which are used to review operating plans, share best 

practice and test communication protocols and procedures 

through regular Emergency exercises.  

 

4.8.5 The close working with the key stakeholders listed is also 

extended to the planning for major events where SWTRA were 

active partners in the successful planning and coordination of 

traffic management for the Ryder Cup in 2010, Olympic Torch 

Relay 2012, and the NATO Wales Summit in 2014. Through this 

multi-agency planning for such events disruption to the road 

user was kept to a minimum by way of ensuring that measures 

were in place to both inform and assist those using the network 

who may be attending events or commuting.  

 

4.8.6 During these events the South Wales Traffic Management Centre 

has been used as an important communication hub for providing 

notifications to Welsh Government, key stakeholders and the 

travelling public.  

 

4.8.7 The SWTRA provide details of incidents or congestion to the WG 

Traffic Wales Information service which is provided by the Welsh 

Transport Technology Consultant (WTTC) on behalf of Welsh 

Government, which enables traffic alerts to be issued to the 

public. Traffic bulletin details are also provided by the INRIX 

service from the SWTMC  

  

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 19



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

10 
 

5. Provide statistics on the volume of roadworks and number of 

accidents and associated downtime on the network. 

 

5.1 Accidents (Road Traffic Collisions) and the associated 

downtime (disruption to the network). The below statistics 

indicate the number of road traffic collisions which have been 

recorded and collated for all South Wales trunk roads in 

accordance with Welsh Government’ reporting requirements for 

the financial year 2013/14. The numbers of Road Traffic 

Collisions are grouped to illustrate the associated disruption 

which occurs as a result. These figures indicate that the largest 

proportion of collisions are attended / managed without 

disruption being caused to the travelling public. Table 2 

indicates the numbers of Fatal and Serious Injury Road Traffic 

Collisions which result in disruption in excess of 4 hours in order 

to facilitate scene recovery and accident investigation.   

 

Table: 1 
 

 

          

         Table 2 
 

Financial 
Year 

Fatal  
Road Traffic 
Collisions  

No. of 
Incidents 
>4hrs 

Average 
(hrs) 

Serious Injury, 
Road Traffic 
Collisions  

No. of 
Incidents 
>4hrs 

Average 
(hrs) 

2011/12 14 10 7.1 23 7 4.3 
2012/13 18 17 6.1 36 14 5 
2013/14 14 14 6.6 23 6 4.3 

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000

No disruption

Less than 15 minutes

Up to 1 hour

Up to 2 hours

Up to 3 hours

Up to 4 hours

More than 4 hours

No
disruption

Less than
15 minutes

Up to 1
hour

Up to 2
hours

Up to 3
hours

Up to 4
hours

More than
4 hours

Series1 958 44 107 69 11 7 20

RTC's by Route & Disruption Duration - 1st April 2013 -
31st March 2014

Tudalen y pecyn 20



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

11 
 

5.2 Volume of road works 

Please note that within the timescales available for this 

information request and in order to provide detailed information 

for the most critical route in the SWTRA area, statistics are 

restricted to the M4 Motorway between the Second Severn 

Crossing and J49 Pont Abraham for the financial year 2013/14.  

 

5.3 Traffic Management (TM) implemented between the 1
st

 April 

2013 and 31
st

 March 2014 on the M4 SSC to J49 was required for 

the following planned and reactive works and projects in 

accordance with Welsh Government requirements: 

 

 Cyclic Maintenance 

 Planned Maintenance 

 Category 1 Defects 

 Surveys and Inspections 

 Tunnel Closures 

 Major Maintenance Schemes 

 Statutory Undertakers 

 

For clarity: 

  

- Daytime period is considered to be between 09.30- 15.30 

- Peak Time are considered as 06.00 to 09.30 and 15.30 to 

20.00 including weekends 

- Overnight period is considered to be between 20.00 and 

06.00 

 

5.4 A summary of the volume of road works / traffic management 

associated with the above operations and contracts can be 

quantified as follows: 

 

 Total number of overnight (20.00 -06.00) work sites = 2082 

over 275 nights, 

 Total number of daytime (off peak 09.30-15.30) work sites= 

1551 sites over 200 days (meaning 165 days where no TM 

was implented during this period)  

 Number of days with no TM in place at all within 24 hour 

period = 31days 

 

 

6. Compensation claims from Road Users resulting from the condition 

of the network.  

 

6.1 Information relating to the settlement of claims is held by Welsh 

Government and is subject to a separate response.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



National Assembly for Wales Public Accounts Committee: Inquiry 

into Value for Money of Motorway and Trunk Road Investment  

South Wales Trunk Road Agent- Supplementary Questions: Written Response 18th March 2015 
 

12 
 

 

 

 

 

Richard Jones BSc(Hons) C.Eng C Mgr C.Env FICE FCIHT FCMI, 

 Head of Service – South Wales Trunk Road Agent, Unit 12 Llandarcy House, 

The Courtyard, Llandarcy, Neath SA10 6EJ 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 
 

Page | 1 
 

1. Cyflwyniad 

 

1.1 Penodwyd Cyngor Gwynedd yn Asiant Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru (ACGCC) 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru (LlC) ym mis Ebrill 2012. Mae ACGCC yn gyfrifol am gyflawni 
gofynion Cytundeb Asiant Rheoli Llywodraeth Cymru (CARhLlC) a gofynion y Ddeddf 
Priffyrdd yn cynnwys y 'ddyletswydd i gynnal' statudol dan awdurdod dirprwyedig gan LlC. 

1.2 Mae rôl yr Asiant yn cynnwys y swyddogaethau a ganlyn: 

 Archwilio asedau priffyrdd i bennu cyflwr yr asedau ac adnabod peryglon diogelwch; 

 Adnabod gofynion gwella ac adnewyddu cynnal a chadw ar gyfer yr holl asedau 
priffyrdd a chyflwyno bidiau priodol i LlC i gynorthwyo gyda phenderfyniadau ariannu; 

 Pennu dichonoldeb ac ymgymryd â dyluniadau manwl ar gyfer cynlluniau adnewyddu 
cynnal a chadw, uwchraddio a mân welliannau; 

 Ymgymryd â gwaith cynnal a chadw rheolaidd ac ymatebol ar y rhwydwaith 
Cefnffyrdd yn cynnwys cywiro diffygion diogelwch ac ymateb i ddigwyddiadau brys o 
fewn amserlenni penodol; 

 Darparu cyngor i LlC ar faterion gweithredol, ceisiadau am wasanaeth gan y cyhoedd 
ac aelodau etholedig; 

 Gweithredu Gwasanaeth Swyddog Traffig LlC a swyddogaethau Ystafell Reoli'r 
rhwydwaith; 

 Rheolwr Twneli Statudol; 

 Cynrychiolydd Adrannol ar gyfer Contract Dylunio Adeiladu Cyllido Gweithredu yr 
A55; 

 Rheoli cyllideb gan LlC o tua £50m. 
 

2.  Cefndir 

2.1 Adolygwyd trefniadau rheoli Cefnffyrdd yng Nghymru gan LlC rhwng 2002 a 2005 a 
rhesymolwyd nifer yr Asiantau o wyth i’r hyn a ystyriwyd yn nifer optimwm o dri yn 
2005/6 gan ffurfio Asiantau Cefnffyrdd Gogledd, Canolbarth a De Cymru. 

2.2 Rhwng 2007 a 2013 mae nifer o archwiliadau allanol llwyddiannus wedi’u comisiynu gan 
LlC wedi’u cynnal gan Halcrow yn 2007, EC Harris yn 2008, Performance Audit Group yn 
2011 a 2012 ac EC Harris yn 2013. Roedd Archwiliad EC Harris yn 2008 yn cynnwys 
ymarferiad meincnodi ledled Cymru a chyda gwasanaethau tebyg a ddarperir gan y sector 
preifat yn yr Alban. Cadarnhaodd yr adolygiad llwyddiannus fod y model sector cyhoeddus 
sy’n weithredol yng Nghymru yng nghyd-destun economi Cymru yn darparu Gwerth am 
Arian ac adnewyddwyd trefniadau’r Asiant yn 2012. Nododd LlC fel a ganlyn yn ei llythyr 
penodi: “Dyma ganlyniad cadarnhaol iawn ar gyfer y model darparu sector cyhoeddus 
unigryw sydd gennym yng Nghymru, a fydd bellach yn parhau yn sgil sefydlu ei fod yn gost 
effeithiol wrth gymharu â modelau preifat eraill fel rhan o'r adolygiad.” 

2.3 Mae ACGCC wedi parhau gyda phroses gynhwysfawr o welliannau parhaus ers 2012 ac 
mae hyn wedi cynnwys gwelliannau pellach i fesurau llywodraethu ar gyfer gweithredu 
cadwyni cyflenwi’r Asiant. Mae ACGCC hefyd yn gweithredu o fewn System Rheoli 
Ansawdd (SRhA) achrededig. 

2.4 Cynhaliwyd archwiliad o ACGCC gan archwilwyr allanol LlC, EC Harris, ym mis Rhagfyr 2013 
a phrif ganfyddiadau’r archwiliad oedd: 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 
 

Page | 2 
 

 ”Bod cytundeb cyffredinol ymysg y swyddogion LlC a gyfwelwyd bod yr Asiant yn 
ymgymryd â’r waith mewn modd proffesiynol ac nad oedd unrhyw faterion yn 
nhermau perfformiad.” 

 “...ystyriodd y tîm archwilio fod y gwasanaeth cyfredol a ddarperir gan yr Asiant yn 
cael ei gynnal mewn modd proffesiynol ac agored iawn.”  

Cafwyd nifer o argymhellion ar gyfer gwella o fewn yr adroddiad archwilio ac mae ACGCC 
wedi gweithredu mesurau sy’n mynd i’r afael â'r argymhellion hynny, yn cynnwys: 

 Adolygiad llwyr o’i Restr Gyfraddau (RhG) i ddarparu tryloywder llawn o’r costau. 

 Newidiadau i’r model comisiynu ymgynghoriaeth yn cynnwys defnyddio ffi sefydlog a 
phrofi’r farchnad gyda’r sector preifat. 

3. Y graddau y mae’r ymagwedd gyfredol tuag at waith cynnal a chadw rheolaidd ar y 
rhwydwaith drwy'r Asiantau Cefnffyrdd yn darparu gwerth am arian. 

3.1 Mae model gweithredu ACGCC a gytunwyd gyda LlC yn 2005 ac a gadarnhawyd ymhellach 
yn 2012 yn seiliedig ar ethos sector cyhoeddus cadarn gan ddarparu gwasanaethau drwy 
ddefnyddio adnoddau lleol a geir gan gyflenwyr sector cyhoeddus a phreifat. Mae ACGCC 
yn gweithredu fel uned ‘hyd-braich’ ymreolaethol yn sicrhau cywirdeb a trefn 
lywodraethol wrth reoli buddiannau LlC ac yn sicrhau rheolaeth diduedd effeithiol o’r 
drefn partneriaeth.  Mae cost yr Uned Rheoli Cefnffyrdd (URhC) yn cael ei ailgodi ar gost i 
LlC gyda dim gweddill nac elw’n cael eu cynhyrchu gan yr Awdurdod Arweiniol. Agwedd 
bwysig o ddirprwyo i Awdurdod Arweiniol trwy ‘r CARhLlC, a’r trefniadau partneriaeth 
ffurfiol gyda’r Darparwyr Gwasanaeth  Awdurdod Lleol (ALl) yw ei fod yn galluogi i LlC i 
elwa o adennill TAW sy’n cyfateb i 20% o werth  gwaith cynnal a gwasanaethau a wnaed.  

3.2 Mae strategaeth gaffael gyffredinol ACGCC yn sicrhau y gwneir y gorau o’r cyfleoedd i 
gyflenwyr Mentrau Bach a Chanolig lleol, Cymreig. Mae ACGCC yn parhau i wella lefelau 
tryloywder, beincnodi, a chystadleuaeth i sicrhau bod y gwasanaethau’n cael eu darparu 
ar gyfraddau’r farchnad.  

3.3 Mae model ACGCC yn gweithredu ar sail gwasanaethau integredig sy’n cael eu caffael 
drwy ei Awdurdodau Partner gan sicrhau y gwneir y gorau o fuddion darbodion maint 
sylweddol uwch a chyfleoedd rhannu costau a’u bod yn cael eu rhannu rhwng yr 
Awdurdodau Partner a LlC. Mae tryloywder yn sicrhau bod costau’n cael eu dosrannu yn 
briodol. Mae’r model yn galluogi i LlC wneud defnydd o nifer sylweddol o ddepos priffyrdd 
ac eitemau peiriannau mawr sydd wedi’u dosbarthu ledled Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru 
gan olygu y gwneir y defnydd gorau ohonynt yn benodol ar gyfer cynnal a chadw yn y 
gaeaf ac ymateb i argyfyngau. Ni fyddai’r elfen Gefnffyrdd ar ei phen ei hun yn ddigon i 
gefnogi'r trefniant hwn. Mae hyn yn enghraifft batrymol o gydweithio rhwng Llywodraeth 
Leol a Chanolog. 

3.4 O fewn y gwasanaeth integredig, mae lefel sylweddol o adnoddau peiriannau a llafur ar 
gael drwy drefniadau cymorth ffurfiol i ymdrin â digwyddiadau eithriadol a ddaw yn sgil 
tywydd gwael iawn neu wrthdrawiadau traffig ffordd mawr. Mae LlC yn elwa o’r 
adnoddau sylweddol hyn ar sail rhannu costau ond yn ystod digwyddiadau mawr bydd 
ganddi fynediad i adnoddau ymhell y tu hwnt i’r rheini fyddai’n eu cael o ran lefel y 
cyfraniad. 

3.5 Mae gwasanaethau craidd yn cynnwys gwaith cynnal a chadw rheolaidd ac ymatebol yn 
cael eu caffael drwy Awdurdodau Partnerol Lleol yn defnyddio cyfuniad o adnoddau 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 
 

Page | 3 
 

mewnol a chyflenwyr sector preifat Mentrau Bach a Chanolig.  Mae oddeutu 50 i 60% o 
wariant gwasanaeth craidd gyda chyflenwyr sector preifat yn cael eu caffael drwy 
brosesau cystadleuol. Mae perfformiad y gadwyn gyflenwi yn cael ei fonitro a’i asesu yn 
unol â gofynion CARHLLC. Mae gwaith Cynnal a Chadw mawr a gwaith “cyfalaf” arall yn 
cael ei wneud gan Gontractwr sector preifat a chadwyn gyflenwi Fframwaith Wynebu’r 
Asiantaeth. Mae dylunio a gwaith ymgynghori arall yn cael ei wneud drwy gyfuniad o 
gadwyn cyflenwi sector cyhoeddus a sector preifat. 

3.6 Mae’r model uchod yn sicrhau y gellir cadw’r adnoddau llafur sydd ynghlwm â 
gwasanaeth cynnal a chadw gaeaf integredig ar sail cost effeithiol drwy leoli’r adnoddau 
hynny, wedi’i ategu gan adnoddau sector preifat Mentrau Bach a Chanolig ar 
swyddogaethau cynnal a chadw nad ydynt yn rhai gaeaf. Mae effeithlonrwydd cyffredinol 
y model hwn yn cael eu rhannu rhwng LlC a'r Awdurdodau Partner. 

3.7 Mae rheoli o fewn y gyllideb yn agwedd allweddol o fodel ACGCC ac mae’r amrywiant 
rhwng y clustnodiad terfynol a ganiatawyd a’r canlyniad gwariant yn cael ei gyflawni'n 
gyson i rhwng +/- 1% ar glustnodiad cyffredinol y gyllideb. 

3.8 Mae ACGCC yn gweithredu mewn partneriaeth gyda LlC gan fabwysiadu gwerthoedd 
sector cyhoeddus cyffredin a diwylliant cydweithredol sy’n osgoi agweddau 
anghynhyrchiol costus a geir mewn sawl trefniant mwy cytundebol.  

3.9  Mae ACGCC wedi profi ei fod yn medru addasu'n rhwydd i ofynion newidiol LlC ynghylch 
ystod y gwasanaethau sydd eu hangen ac mae wedi ychwanegu'r gwasanaethau isod yn 
llwyddiannus i'w rôl fel Asiant: 

 Rôl Rheolwr Twneli Statudol 2006; 

 Gwasanaeth Cefnogi Digwyddiadau mewn Twneli yn 2008; 

 Gwasanaeth Swyddogion Traffig yn 2009: 

 Ystafell Reoli Canolfan Rheoli Traffig Gogledd Cymru 2010; 

 Uno ag Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd Canolbarth Cymru (ACCC) yn 2012; 

 Cyngor Rheolaeth Datblygu 2012; 

 Symud i SGFFI yn 2012. 
 

3.10 Pe byddai’r newidiadau uchod wedi’u gweithredu drwy fodel sector preifat / trosglwyddo 
risg, byddai'r goblygiadau cytundebol, cost a chyflawni wedi bod yn sylweddol.  

 
4. Sut gellir gwella’r Swyddogaethau cynnal a chadw a gwella a gyflawnir gan yr Asiant 

Cefnffyrdd, yng nghyd-destun adolygiad parhaus Llywodraeth Cymru o’r Asiantau 
hynny? 

4.1 Mewn ymateb i Ddatganiad y Gweinidogion ar 11 Tachwedd 2013, mae’r Asiantau 
Cefnffyrdd yn paratoi sylwadau i LlC ar hyn o bryd er mwyn dangos cynigion i fodloni'r 
amcanion Gweinidogol a ganlyn:  

 Gyrru a chyflawni arbedion cost sylweddol yn y swyddogaethau Rheoli, Cynnal a 
Chadw ac Archwilio; 

 Gwella ystwythder i fodloni anghenion newidiol LlC;  

 Cytgordio’r ymagwedd ledled Cymru. 

4.2 Mae ACGCC wedi adnabod newidiadau i fodel darparu Asiant a fydd yn cyflawni arbedion i 
LlC yn seiliedig ar fewnoli'r rhan fwyaf o swyddogaethau craidd o fewn yr Asiant yn 
cynnwys adolygu sut mae gwaith yn cael ei gomisiynu a newid y swyddogaeth archwilio i 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 
 

Page | 4 
 

sail fwy rhanbarthol. Bydd gofyn ailstrwythuro’r Asiantaeth ar y cyd â’r ailstrwythuro sydd 
ei angen yn dilyn trosglwyddo swyddogaeth cynllunio’r Asiant i LlC ym mis Ebrill 2014.  

4.3 Mae’r heriau y mae ACGCC yn eu hwynebu a'r cyfyngiadau ar gyflawni yn cynnwys: 

 Newidiadau i glustnodi cyllidebau gyda chyfleoedd ariannu'n codi'n rheolaidd yn 
chwarter pedwar all roi pwysau sylweddol ar gadwyn gyflenwi ac argaeledd ffyrdd 
ACGCC; 

 Mae gweithio o fewn cyfnodau embargo Cefnffyrdd yn creu trefniadau rhaglenni 
heriol; 

 Gofynion gweithredu cynlluniau ar frys a achosir, er enghraifft, gan fethiant i asedau. 

 Mae LlC yn gweithredu newidiadau sylweddol ar hyn o bryd drwy fewnoli'r 
swyddogaeth Cynllunio ac integreiddio'i systemau TG. 

4.4 Er mwyn mynd i’r afael â’r heriau hyn, mae ACGCC wedi sefydlu cadwyn gyflenwi ystwyth 
iawn sy’n ein galluogi i fodloni’r trefniadau darparu uchod yn gyson drwy allu gynyddu neu 
ostwng i fodloni blaenoriaethau cyllideb o fewn y flwyddyn a’r rhai blynyddol. Mae 
manteision gallu craidd sector cyhoeddus sydd â gwybodaeth am y rhwydwaith yn osgoi 
‘dechrau o’r newydd’ ac oedi i gyflwyno’r prosiect ac mae’r adnoddau estynedig sydd ar 
gael o fewn ei fframweithiau sector preifat yn galluogi ymateb yn gyflym i ofynion 
newidiol LlC a hynny mewn modd cost effeithiol. 

4.5 Mae ACGCC bellach yn mabwysiadu strategaeth gyflwyno sy’n galluogi iddo fynd i’r afael 
â’r heriau uchod drwy ganolbwyntio ar baratoi cynlluniau yn ystod chwarter 1 a 2 gyda’r 
camau adeiladu wedi’u rhaglennu ar gyfer eu darparu yn yr hydref / gaeaf. Byddai cael 
gwybod yn gynharach am gyfleoedd ariannu hwyr yn cynorthwyo Asiantau Cefnffyrdd 
wrth gwneud y gorau o werth am arian wrth gyflwyno gwelliannau i’r rhwydwaith. 

4.6 Ar hyn o bryd, mae amrediad o declynnau rheoli asedau gwahanol yn cae eu defnyddio i 
asesu a blaenoriaethu penderfyniadau ariannu. Byddai ymagwedd rheoli asedau fwy 
ffurfiol yn cynorthwyo gyda gwella rheoli asedau yn yr hir dymor a chostau oes cyfan 
cysylltiedig. Mae hyn yn cael ei fwrw ymlaen yn rhannol gan ddefnyddio’r System 
Gwybodaeth Ffyrdd Integredig (SGFfI) sy’n cael ei datblygu gan yr ymgynghorwyr WDM ar 
ran LlC. Unwaith y bydd wedi’i gweithredu’n llawn, dylai’r system gynorthwyo LlC i wneud 
penderfyniadau ariannu gwell ar draws yr holl fathau o asedau. Mae'r ddau Asiant 
Cefnffyrdd yn gweithio’n agos gyda LlC a’u contractwr i sicrhau bod y cynllun pwysig hwn 
yn cael ei gyflwyno’n llwyddiannus. Byddai cyflwyno SGFFI yn gynnar yn gwella 
effeithiolrwydd darpariaeth LlC a'r Asiant. 

4.7 Mae’r gostyngiad mewn buddsoddiad mewn gwaith cynnal a chadw wedi’i gynllunio yn 
cynyddu graddau’r gwaith cynnal a chadw ymatebol sydd ei angen i gynnal diogelwch 
gweithredol y rhwydwaith. Rhaid optimeiddio’r cydbwysedd rhwng gwaith cynnal a chadw 
wedi’i raglennu a gwaith cynnal a chadw ymatebol o fewn yr arian sydd ar gael yn sgil y 
costau uchel a’r aflonyddwch sydd ynghlwm ag ymagwedd ymatebol. Mae sgôp hefyd i 
wella lefelau triniaethau cynnal a chadw ataliol i gynyddu oes gweithredol asedau.  

4.8 Mae natur y rhwydwaith Cefnffyrdd yng Nghymru yn amrywio’n sylweddol o 
draffyrdd/ffyrdd deuol i ffyrdd sengl gwledig. Mae ffyrdd sengl hefyd yn amrywio o 
rannau coediog iawn i fylchau mynyddig a rhannau arfordirol. Mae rhan helaeth o’r 
rhwydwaith wedi’i datblygu o lwybrau hanesyddol gyda rhannau hir nad ydynt erioed 
wedi’u dylunio na’u cynllunio i safonau cyfredol. Mae hyn yn achosi amrywiaeth o heriau 
gweithredol a chynnal a chadw.  

Tudalen y pecyn 26



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 
 

Page | 5 
 

4.9 Mae Llawlyfr Cynnal a Chadw Cefnffyrdd Llywodraeth Cymru (LlCChCLlC) yn pennu 
safonau ar gyfer cynnal a chadw ledled Cymru ond nid yw’n ystyried rhannau penodol o 
fathau o rwydwaith. Mae potensial i ymagwedd fwy cost effeithiol i gynnal a chadw’r 
rhwydwaith drwy fabwysiadu ymagwedd gwybodaeth weithredol sy’n seiliedig ar risg yn 
wahanol i ymagwedd gyffredinol, sydd â’r potensial o fod yn aneffeithiol. Byddai profiad 
gweithredol ACGCC a’i wybodaeth am y rhwydwaith yn galluogi iddo ddatblygu 
amrywiadau lleol priodol i LlCChCLlC ar draws nifer o fathau o asedau i gyflawni system 
cynnal a chadw mwy cost effeithiol gan reoli risg LlC i lefel dderbyniol. 

4.10 Drwy feincnodi, mae ACGCC yn adnabod meysydd o arfer gorau o fewn ei gadwyn 
gyflenwi gyda chyfleoedd i drosglwyddo'r arferion hyn ar draws ei gyflenwyr gan 
gynhyrchu effeithlonrwydd cost cysylltiedig. Mae ACGCC hefyd yn ymgymryd ag asesiad 
rheoli LEAN o’r hyn y mae’n ei gyflwyno er mwyn gyrru effeithlonrwydd cost pellach. 

4.11 Yn hanesyddol, mae’r ddau Asiant Cefnffyrdd wedi gweithio ar y cyd a byddant yn 
adeiladu ar y platfform hwn i wellau lefelau cytgordio ymhellach ledled Cymru. Mae’r 
cynlluniau sy’n cael eu cyflwyno yn cynnwys paratoi Cytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth 
cyffredinol a methodoleg Rhestr Gyfraddau.  

5.0 Sylwadau i gloi 

5.1 Mae’r model Asiant Cefnffyrdd cyfredol wedi profi, drwy brosesau adolygu niferus, ei fod 
yn darparu lefelau da o werth am arian drwy ei gadwyni cyflenwi sector cyhoeddus a 
phreifat gan weithredu o fewn systemau rheoli perfformiad a llywodraethu cadarn. Mae 
gweithredu model gwasanaeth integredig yn darparu darbodion maint sylweddol a’r gallu 
i optimeiddio darpariaeth gwasanaeth er lles LlC ac Awdurdodau Lleol. Mae’r gadwyn 
gyflenwi sydd wedi’i sefydlu yn creu cyfleoedd sylweddol i Fentrau Bach a Chanolig yng 
Nghymru i ymgymryd â gwaith Cefnffyrdd drwy gyswllt uniongyrchol gyda’r Asiant drwy 
fframweithiau neu fel rhan o’r gadwyn gyflenwi estynedig ar ddarperir gan Awdurdodau 
Lleol. Mae hyn yn dod â manteision sylweddol i economïau lleol a chenedlaethol Cymru ac 
yn cynorthwyo wrth greu a chynnal cyfleoedd gwaith lleol o ansawdd. 

5.2 Fodd bynnag, mae bob amser sgôp i wella’r model ymhellach ac mae’r ddau Asiant yn 
gweithio’n galed i gyflawni hyn er mwyn bodloni'r heriau a gyflwynir gan y Gweinidog a 
sicrhau y parheir y ddarparu gwerth am arian. 

David Cooil, Pennaeth Gwasanaeth – Asiant Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru 
Uned 7, Llys Onnen, Ffordd y Llyn, Parc Menai, Bangor LL57 4DF  
 (01286 685182)    davidcooil@ACGCC.org.uk 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 27

mailto:davidcooil@nmwtra.org.uk


Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 

PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
17 March 2015 

 

 

 

 

  

PPuubblliicc  AAccccoouunnttss  CCoommmmiitttteeee    

((PPAACC  AAuuddiitt))  

  

IInnqquuiirryy  iinnttoo  vvaalluuee  ffoorr  mmoonneeyy  ooff  

MMoottoorrwwaayy  aanndd  TTrruunnkk  RRooaadd  

IInnvveessttmmeenntt 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

2 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

3 

 

 

Contents Page 
 
Further evidence / information to the PAC Audit 
 

1. Figures on staffing levels at the North Wales Trunk Road Agent, 
including local authority staff involved in delivery and any local 
authority staff seconded. Information for each year from 2011-12 
to the current financial year; 

 
2. Further information on traffic management  and resilience 

arrangements; 
 

3. Details of how accidents and major incidents on the trunk road and 
motorway network are managed; and 

 
4. Statistics on the volume of road works and number of accidents 

and associated downtime on the network, as well as compensation 
claims from road users resulting from the condition of the network.  

 

 
 
 

3 
 
 
 
 

5 
 
 

7 
 
 

10 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

4 

 

 

1.  Figures on staffing levels at the North Wales Trunk Road Agent, including local 
 authority staff involved in delivery and any local authority staff seconded. 
Information for each year from 2011-12 to the current financial year; 

 
1.1 The NMWTRA staff currently stands at 102 with 64 staff undertaking the technical and 

administration functions of the Agency associated with inspecting, operating and maintaining 
approximately 1200 km of Trunk Road Network and an associated budget of approximately 
£50m. 38 staff comprise the Operations unit including the Traffic Officer Service (27 staff) 
and Control Room Functions (10 staff) falling within the responsibility of the Operations Unit 
Manager (1No. staff). 

 
1.2 The Agency directly employed staff numbers have increased since 2005 when, for the former 

North Wales Trunk Road Agency (NWTRA), staffing levels stood at 26 and 12 for the former 
Mid Wales Trunk Road Agency (MWTRA) giving 36 in total. This reflected the model 
stipulated by Welsh Government at this time with a requirement to ‘buy in’ the majority of 
services from Local Authorities. Whilst the number of directly employed staff stood at 36 the 
number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff involved in Trunk Road management when those 
staff embedded in Local Authorities was taken into account was estimated at 90FTE’s 
delivering core services. 

 
1.3 Since 2006 staffing levels for directly employed staff within the Agent have increased by 

agreement with Welsh Government, predominantly through staff transferring from Local 
Authorities, the private sector, the merger with the MWTRA and from creation of the Traffic 
Officer (TO) Service and Control Room to form an Operations Unit. It is important to note 
that excluding the Operations Unit, overall FTE levels have increased by 7, with a residual 33 
FTE’s currently embedded in Local Authorities giving an overall FTE of approximately 97 
compared to 90 in 2005. This modest increase in FTE levels needs to be considered in the 
context of the additional services that are being delivered at Welsh Government request. 
Three posts are directly linked to new service areas including: 

 

 Statutory Tunnel Manager; 

 Deputy Tunnel Manager; 

 Statutory Tunnel Safety Officer & Risk Manager; 
 
 The remaining four posts are linked to improved governance requirements (3 posts) 

associated with the NMWTRA Schedule of Rates system and additional administrative 
support (1 post). 

 
   The current internalisation of the planning function into WG will reduce NMWTRA staffing by 

11No. in April 2015. The time line and changes to NMWTRA staffing arrangements are 
indicated below. 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

5 
 

 

Timeline Staff requirement Staff numbers 
Cumulative 

staff 
Increase in 

FTE 

Oct 2005 NWTRA conception based on WG requirement for a lean management unit structure and bought in 
services from Local Authorities. Model and structure agreed with WG based on two years of discussion 
and negotiation. 

26 26 N/A 

Feb 2006 NWTRA requested to take on Statutory Tunnel Manager function +2 28 2 

March 2011 Third Party Claims and Rechargeable works internalised from LA’s to achieve efficiency savings +1 29 0 

April 2011 TUPE transfer from Flintshire CC of the 100% TR dedicated inspection team (TIU) for NE Wales to enable 
improved management control, restructuring in the Agency team. Agreed with WG at Agency Board 
December 2010.  

+8 37 0 

July 2011 Request from WG to establish a developed Traffic Officer (TO) service for A55.( non-resilient service) +22 59 22 

July 2011 Request from WG to transfer Control Room operational function to NMWTRA to enable integrated 
operations unit comprising control room and TO service to be created. 
TUPE staff transfer from private sector (Atkins) 

+10 
 

69 10 

January2012 Statutory Tunnel Safety Officer under regulation 10 RTSR. +1 70 1 

January 2012 WG requirement for NMWTRA to move to functional asset / network operation split rather than area 
based split at senior level. Internalisation of functions from LA’s plus additional admin support post 

+5 75 1 

April 2012 WG request to merge MWTRA and NWTRA to form NMWTRA.  
TUPE staff transfer from Powys CC to Gwynedd CC and restructure of North Wales Network Operations 
team 

+12 87 0 

April 2012 Agreed internalisation of 100% dedicated Geotechnical Asset manager by TUPE transfer from Wrexham 
CBC. Agreed by WG at Agency Board to improve management control and accountability and cost 
saving. 

+1 88 0 

April 2012 Additional post created to address anticipated SOR workload from Mid Wales. (Appointed Dec 2013 to 
reflect Mid Wales Area SOR implementation programme). Improved governance. 

+1 89 1 

April 2012 Appointment of 2 additional A55 Assistant Route Managers to replace temporary posts following an 
evaluation period and to meet operational requirements.  

+2 91 0 

Nov2012 Expansion of Traffic Officer staff resources to provide 3 unit resilient service at the request of WG. +6 97 6 

July 2013 Appointment of 2 Rechargeable Recovery Officers based on internalisation of recovery and 
Development Control functions from LA’s at WG request.  

+2 99 0 

Dec 2013 As part of NMWTRA phase 2 restructuring an additional 2 new post and internalisation of 1 post to 
provide improved management and control and cost savings. Also to provide an improved level of 
governance for the bought in inspection service. 

+3 102 2 

Net Increase in NMWTRA Full Time Equivalent staff since 2005 excluding the Operations Unit 7 FTE’s  

Net Increase in  NMWTRA Full Time Equivalent staff since 2005 including Operations Unit 45 FTE’s 

T
udalen y pecyn 32



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

6 

 

2. Further information on traffic management and resilience arrangements; 
 
2.1 Traffic Management. 

 
2.1.1 Traffic management is required to meet the various statutory duties of Welsh Government as 

the Highway Authority. In the operation and maintenance of highway networks, it is 
necessary from time to time to put in place temporary traffic management measures to 
facilitate safe road works, temporary closures or incident management, whilst keeping the 
traffic flowing as freely as possible. With high traffic flows and speeds on many roads, it is 
particularly important to plan all works activities and temporary closures to optimise safety, 
road space and work efficiency, whilst minimising road user congestion, delay and 
inconvenience. All reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the effects of the works are 
reduced to a minimum whilst ensuring the safety of both the travelling public and the 
workforce.  

 

2.1.2 For the A55 / A494 corridor, the majority of planned maintenance activities are undertaken 
at night. Where health and safety requirements require day time working, this is undertaken 
during off peak periods and the extent of traffic management and particularly peak time 
traffic management is minimised as far as practicable. For capital delivery projects it is often 
necessary to maintain 24 hour traffic management arrangements to facilitate the continuity 
of working operations and efficiently install, operate and remove complex TM installations 
associated with contraflow. In order to minimise as far as possible the associated disruption, 
NMWTRA contract specifications require enhanced contractor resources and extended 
working days / weeks to ensure overall programme for completion is minimised, as far as 
possible within contract constraints, which may include noise limits when adjacent to 
residential areas. 

 
2.1.3 Welsh Government as Highway Authority can and does significantly influence the timing and 

scope of road works. For example, summer embargo periods are implemented to minimise 
works on tourist routes at peak times of the year and by accepting the additional costs 
associated with night time only or 24hr working to mitigate the levels of disruption. 

 
2.1.4 Day to day co-ordination of traffic management is provided by Agents and their partner local 

authorities as a function under the New Roads & Street Works Act 1994. This includes the co-
ordination of traffic management and the regulatory management of utilities where 
appropriate. The close liaison between NMWTRA route managers and the adjacent County 
Road Highway Authorities is currently promoted by the integrated approach to network co-
ordination with trunk road activities.  

 
2.2 Resilience Arrangements 

 
The resilience of the trunk road network is dependent on a number of factors, including: 

 
2.2.1 The capacity of a route. A dual carriageway with a hard shoulder will have greater capacity 

and thus resilience to cope with incidents such as road traffic collisions, breakdowns and 
maintenance / construction activities than a single carriageway.  
 

2.2.2 The nature of the network. This can for example be simply expressed in terms of the number 
of safe alternative strategic and/or tactical diversion routes that provide sufficient capacity 
to temporarily replace the main trunk road route closed by an incident. The alternative 
diversion route options available in the NMWTRA area are limited in terms of topography, 
capacity, design standards and are often lengthy in distance and duration. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

7 

 

2.2.3 The design standards. Much of the network has been developed from historical routes with 
long sections that have never been designed or engineered to current standards. This 
reduces the resilience of the network from an operational perspective. Most of the sections 
of the network that have been developed or upgraded have been by online improvements 
which means that there are no significant lengths of parallel routes available for use as traffic 
diversion. This can reduce resilience during major incidents. 

 
2.2.4 Achieving appropriate maintenance standards. This significantly helps to provide resilience 

by ensuring a safe condition of the network and reliable operation with the minimum of 
reactive maintenance activities. 
 

2.2.5 Asset management planning provides a context for the level of maintenance required. 
  
2.2.6 Emergency Response capability – see section 3 below. 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

8 

 

3. Details of how accidents and major incidents on the trunk road and motorway network 
are managed; and 
 

3.1 Responding to an incident - Welsh Government requirements 
 
 Incidents requiring an Emergency Response (ER) by the Agent include a wide range and 

severity of events including for example road traffic collisions, errant vehicles, vehicle 
breakdowns, vehicle fires, flooding, rock falls and landslips, debris, dead animals, fallen trees 
on the highway, security issues, potential suicide events and pollution incidents. Similarly, 
highway infrastructure condition defects (Category 1 defects) are those which ‘require 
prompt attention because they represent an immediate or imminent hazard or because there 
is a risk of short term structural deterioration’. The requirements for ER are defined by the 
Welsh Government (WG) Trunk Road Maintenance Manual (WGTRMM). 

 
3.2 WGTRMM response requirements are detailed in the table below and require the following 

attendance responses from a reactive maintenance / inspection / emergency response 
perspective. Traffic Officer response requirements are defined in the WG Traffic Officer 
Manual. NWTMC Control Room implements the WG Control Room Emergency Procedures.  

 

Location Day Time Response Time Night Time Response Time 

A55 and A494 
Deeside Corridor 07:00 to 19:00 

1hr 
19:00 to 07:00 

1.5hrs 

Other Routes 1.5hr 2hrs 

 
3.3 NMWTRA emergency response capability and resource levels have been established to 

ensure the above performance requirements are met consistently. The NMWTRA Area 
Performance Indicator for incident response is consistently in the order of 99%. Traffic 
Officer response times similarly achieve greater than 99% of target time. The main resources 
available to NMWTRA for incident response comprise: 

 

 Traffic Officer Service (daytime hours 06:00hrs to 20:00 hrs and A55/A494 dual only, 3 
double manned units); 

 North Wales Traffic Management Centre Control Room (24/7/365); 

 Partner Authority Emergency Response Units(24/7/365) ; 

 Partner Authority Mutual Aid arrangements (24/7/365); 

 Contractor Framework plant and labour resources. 
 
3.4 Initiating & Managing an Emergency Response (ER) 
 

ER will be initiated in a number of ways for example: 
 

 Calls from the public e.g. via local authority call centres; 

 Emergency Services reports e.g. via 999; 

 CCTV Cameras at North Wales Traffic Management Centre (NWTMC) in Conwy; 

 The Agent may call the appropriate Emergency Services control centres; 

 WG Emergency phones located on the network; 

 Agent Safety Patrols (daily) on the A55/A494 dual carriageways identifies immediate 
hazards e.g. debris; 

 Agent Safety Inspections (every 14 days on the A55 and 28 days elsewhere) identifies 
Category 1 defects; 

 A55 Traffic Officer Service; 

 North Wales Police; 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

9 

 

 Adverse weather events e.g. high winds requiring a closure at A55 Britannia Bridge, or 
floods. 

 
3.4.1 Following on from initiating an emergency response, typically the timeline of an incident will 

include: 
 

 Emergency Services or Traffic Officers attending the scene and implementing Emergency 
Traffic Management (ETM) to protect the site; 

 For larger scale incidents a secondary response by Emergency Response Unit (ERU) 
support services may be required to establish Temporary Traffic Management (TTM) to 
support the Emergency Services and enable necessary repairs to be undertaken and the 
network returned to normal operation. 

 
3.4.2 Traffic Officers will implement WG agreed procedures for vehicle breakdown recovery via a 

North Wales Police recovery contract, vehicle dragging to lay by, hard verge or other safe 
place, implement diversions, ETM and when appropriate the new Emergency Crossing Points. 
The Traffic Officer Service has demonstrably improved network resilience and the ability for 
NMWTRA to respond to incidents. In 2014 (calendar year) Traffic Officers responded to: 
 

 9,262 events (an average of 25.3 events per day), 

 Comprising: 

o 5,493 Breakdowns; 

o 2,512 Obstructions; 

o 485 Road Traffic Collisions. 

 7 minutes average response time (KPI of 20 minutes); 

 22 minutes average total attendance time’; 

 There were a total of 10,341 events recorded (TO & Control Room) for the same 

period. 

3.4.3 At the A55 Tunnels some responses are immediate, in so far as is practicable, by the Control 
Room staff at NWTMC. For example, setting lane closures signs and Variable Message Signs 
following a vehicle breakdown. This will be implemented under the WG Control Room 
Emergency Procedures. 
 

3.4.4 NMWTRA will often attend an incident in support, or under the direction of, the Emergency 
Services and will operate as a Category 2 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. 
There is a NMWTRA Contingency Plan which covers Critical Incidents and Major Incidents. 
There are also specific tactical contingency plans at some locations e.g. A55 Tunnels. 
NMWTRA is also an active participant in the Local Resilience Forums working closely with the 
Emergency Services and local authority emergency planning staff. During an incident 
NMWTRA will provide Bronze (Operational), Silver (Tactical), Gold (Strategic) command 
representation as required through on-call rotas. Traffic Officers provide the daytime Bronze 
function on the A55 and Assistant Route Manager’s rota, out of hours. 

 
3.4.5 Strategic Diversion (trunk-to-trunk road) and a Tactical Diversion Routes (trunk road-county 

road-trunk road) have been identified and agreed with the local authorities in Wales. In some 
locations these have supporting temporary signs or cone bins in place to enable Traffic 
Officers and the Police to react rapidly. 
 

3.4.6 To meet WGTRMM requirements, NMWTRA has implemented Emergency Response Unit 
(ERU) support through its local authority partners. This provides a proportionate out-of-
hour’s response by a Duty Officer and maintenance operatives to provide appropriate ER 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

10 

 

such as basic temporary traffic management and initiate any necessary repairs or larger 
debris removal. The ERU resource levels are matched to meet the specified response times 
defined in WGTRMM. To further support the ERU during Major Incidents there are formal 
Mutual Aid arrangements between the local authority partners which provides additional 
resource resilience. There are also Urgent Works arrangements in place under our private 
sector contractor framework e.g. for managing a collapsed culvert at short notice. 

 
3.4.7 NMWTRA will provide details of incidents and roadworks to relevant WG databases and 

provides information to the WG Traffic Wales information service provided by the Welsh 
Transport Technology Consultant (WTTC) on behalf of WG. Details are also conveyed to and 
from the INRIX service in the South Wales Traffic Management Centre in Coryton. NWTMC 
Control Room operators are able to upload information to the WG Traffic Wales website and 
provide ‘Clickatell’ text messages to a defined WG list of recipients. Traffic alerts will also be 
tweeted automatically on the Traffic Wales twitter page. Website scrolling banners are 
provided by WTTC. For operational events: 

 
o Incident events – a traffic alert is created once an incident has been identified; 
o Incident road closures – on the single carriageway network the information will come 

from the INRIX or the Police; 
o For incident related congestion – a traffic alert will be created. 

 
3.5 Recovering from an incident 
 
3.5.1 The recovery phase of an incident will include for example ‘making safe’, clean-up 

operations, temporary repair or permanent repairs, for example damaged safety barrier in a 
central reserve of a dual carriageway may require an interim make safe repair to re-open the 
road pending a permanent repair. The ERU will normally enable the road to be re-opened 
fully or at least partially in a limited way depending on the size and severity of the incident. In 
some cases the recovery phase becomes a works project in its own right and requires 
appropriate levels of resource and technical expertise / design / technical approval to 
resolve. This will normally require Temporary Traffic Management for the safety of the 
workforce or to protect the public whilst damaged barriers are unable to provide adequate 
containment until repairs are completed. The emphasis and focus from the Agent and the 
Emergency Services is always on rapid recovery to re-open a road safely and as soon as 
possible. 

 
3.5.2 The Agent is responsible for the safe re-opening of the road once the Emergency Services 

have completed their work and it is safe to do so.  
 
3.6 Emergency Response exercises 
 

NMWTRA routinely arranges and participates in exercises in collaboration with the 
Emergency Services and Highways Agency in England. These are a statutory requirement at 
the A55 Tunnels. This ensures the effectiveness of multi-agency responses to incidents. 

 
3.7 Summary comments 
 

 Emergency Response requirements are specified in WGTRMM, WG Traffic Officer 
Manual and WG Control Room Emergency Procedures; 

 NMWTRA resource levels are matched to meet WG response requirements; 

 Performance levels are consistently achieved within Agency Agreement Performance 
Indicators. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

11 

 

4. Statistics on the volume of road works and number of accidents and associated 
downtime on the network, as well as compensation claims from road users resulting from 
the condition of the network. 
 

4.0 Volume of road works 
 
4.1 Please note that within the timescales associated with this information request and in order 

to provide detailed information for the most critical route in the NMWTRA Area statistics are 
restricted to the A55/A494 Dual Carriageway corridor and the financial year 2013/14. 
NMWTRA’s approach to managing traffic management and disruption is shown in section 3 
above. 

 
4.2 Traffic Management (TM) implemented between 1st April 2013 and 31st March 2014 on the 

A55 / A494 corridor (excluding the DBFO section) was required for the following planned and 
reactive works and projects in accordance with Welsh Government requirements: 

 

 Routine cyclic maintenance work programme; 

 Routine planned maintenance work; 

 Routine planned tunnel & headland maintenance work;  

 Reactive Category 1 defect repair work; 

 Welsh Government survey work; 

 Capital Schemes; 

 Other Third Parties’ works. 

 
4.3  A summary of the volume of road works / traffic management associated with the above 

operations and contracts can be quantified as follows: 
 

 Total number of overnight (18:00 – 07:00) work sites = 243 sites over 51 nights; 

 Total number of daytime (off peak 09:00 – 16:00) work sites = 63 sites over 126 days; 

 Number of days with no TM in place at all within 24 hour period = 84 days; 

 Total number of days with TM present = 281 days. 

For clarity: 
 
- Daytime period is considered to be between 07:00 and 18:00; 
- Peak times are considered as 07:00 – 09:00 and 16:00 to 18:00 weekdays; 
- Overnight period is considered to be between 18:00 and 07:00.  

 
Therefore for 2013/14 there were a minimum of 210 days with no peak time Traffic 
Management in place. Peak time traffic management will normally increase when capital 
works are being undertaken. This will fluctuate from year to year dependant on funding. 

 
4.4 Breakdown of work type and traffic management arrangements is as follows: 
 
4.4.1 Routine cyclic maintenance programme (e.g. gully emptying, grass cutting): 
 

 Total number of cyclic maintenance TM sites = 84 no; 

 Cyclic maintenance works undertaken overnight = 80 no. sites; 

 Cyclic maintenance works undertaken during daytime off peak time = 2no. sites; 

 Cyclic maintenance works undertaken during daytime peak time = 2no. sites. 

4.4.2 Routine planned maintenance work (e.g. Carriageway patching, soft estate work) 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

12 

 

 

 Total number of planned maintenance TM sites = 95 no. 

 Planned maintenance works undertaken overnight = 47 no. sites; 

 Planned maintenance works undertaken during daytime off peak time = 46 no. sites; 

 Planned maintenance works undertaken during daytime peak time = 2no. sites. 

4.4.3 Routine planned tunnel & headland maintenance work (Conwy, Penyclip, Penmaenbach) 
 

 Total number of planned tunnel & headland maintenance TM sites = 28 no; 

 Planned tunnel & headland maintenance works undertaken overnight = 17 no; 

 Planned tunnel & headland maintenance works undertaken during daytime off peak 

time = 4 no. sites; 

 Planned tunnel & headland maintenance works undertaken during daytime peak 

time = 7 no. sites. 

4.4.4 Reactive Category 1 defect repairs (e.g. safety fence repair work) 
 

 Total number of reactive Category 1 defect repair TM sites = 71 no; 

 Reactive Category 1 defect repair work undertaken overnight = 64 no. sites; 

 Reactive Category 1 defect repair work undertaken during daytime off peak time = 5 

no. sites; 

 Reactive Category 1 defect repair work undertaken during daytime peak time = 2no. 

sites. 

4.5.5 WG Contracted Survey Work (e.g. Deflectograph surveys) 
 

 Total number of Deflectograph Survey TM sites = 5no; 

 Deflectograph Survey work undertaken overnight = 5 no. sites; 

 Deflectograph Survey work undertaken during daytime off peak time = nil; 

 Deflectograph Survey work undertaken during daytime peak time = nil. 

 
4.5.6 Capital Schemes (e.g. Major Maintenance, Tunnel Upgrade) 
 

 Total number of Capital Scheme Project sites = 23 no; 

 Capital Scheme Project work undertaken overnight = 3 no. sites; 

 Capital Scheme Project work undertaken during daytime off peak time = 6 no. sites; 

 Capital Scheme Project undertaken during daytime peak time = 14 no. sites. 

4.5.7 Other Parties Works (e.g. Welsh Water, British Telecom) 
 

 Total number of other parties work TM sites = 26 no; 

 Number of other parties work undertaken overnight = 26 no. sites; 

 Number of other parties work undertaken during daytime off peak time = nil. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

13 

 

4.6. Accidents and associated downtime 
 
‘Accidents’ have been interpreted as road traffic collisions in accordance with current Welsh 
Government reporting requirements. The number of road traffic collisions and associated downtime 
for the A55/494 Dual Carriageway for 2013/14 is illustrated below: 
 

 
 
The following table provides summary detail of the longest duration incidents: 
 

Event Duration Event Summary 

Up to 3 hours 1. 04/05/2013 @ 15:32hrs, A55 J35 – J34 west bound 
3 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 
 

2. 15/05/2013 @ 15:44hrs, A55 J32 – J33 west bound 
5 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 

 
3. 26/07/2013 @ 10:57hrs, A55 J32 – J33 east bound 

5 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 
 

4. 06/11/2013 @ 20:53hrs, A55 J23 / J23A east bound 
1 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by NWP 
 

5. 07/02/2014 @ 09:01hrs, A55 J33 – J34 east bound 
1 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 

 

Up to 4 hours 
 

1. 19/02/2014 @ 12:39hrs, A55 J12 – J13 eastbound 
4 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 

 

More than 4 
hours 

1. 10/10/2013 @ 21:09hrs,  A55 J16 – J15 west bound 
1 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by NWP 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



    PAC Audit                                                                                             March 2015 

14 

 

2. 27/11/2013 @ 08:21hrs, A55 J25 roundabout 
1 vehicle knocked over a child, Incident dealt by Traffic Officers + NWP 
 

3. 10/01/2014 @ 01:55hrs, A55 J11 – J12 eastbound 
2 vehicle RTC Incident dealt by NWP 
 

4. 04/02/2014 @ 05:56hrs, A55 J8A  
Overturned LGV on Britannia, Incident dealt by NWP 

 

 

4.7 Compensation claims from road users resulting from the condition of the network 
 
Information relating to claims from road users is held by Welsh Government and is therefore not 
included in this submission. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 42

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 52

Eitem 4 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Papurau i’w nodi
	3 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 4
	PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 2 - Gwybodaeth Ychwanegol Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd De Cymru (Saesneg yn Unig)
	PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 3 – Ymateb Asiantaeth Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru i’r Ymgynghoriad
	PAC(4)-09-15 Papur 4 – Gwybodaeth Ychwanegol Cefnffyrdd Gogledd a Chanolbarth Cymru (Saesneg yn Unig)
	Briff gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil

	4 Trefniadau llywodraethu Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr: Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1



